ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 12, 2008
1: 07 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson, Co-Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Bryce Edgnon
Representative Scott Kawasaki

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative David Guttenberg

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S)

Al aska Commerci al Fisheries Entry Conm ssion

Frank Honman - Juneau
- HEARD AND HELD

Big Gane Commercial Services Board

Brenda Rebne - Anchorage
- HEARD AND HELD

Board of Gane

Ted Spraker - Sol dot na

- SCHEDULED BUT NOTI' HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to report

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2008



FRANK HOMAN, Appoi nt ee

to the Comrercial Fisheries Entry Comm ssion

Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Commercia
Fi sheries Entry Comm ssion.

BRENDA REBNE, Appoi nt ee

to the Big Game Commercial Services Board

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Big Gane
Commerci al Servi ces Board.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR CRAIG JOHNSON called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:07:32 PM Represent ati ves
Seaton, Roses, Kawasaki, Fairclough, Gatto, and Johnson were
present at the call to order. Representati ve Edgnon arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S)
Al aska Commrerci al Fisheries Entry Commi ssion

1: 07: 47 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON announced that the conmittee woul d consider the
appoi ntnent of M. Frank Homan to the Alaska Commercia
Fisheries Entry Comm ssion. [ Packets contai ned biographical
i nformati on on the appointee.]

CO CHAIR JOHNSON asked M. Homan to begin by stating why he is
interested in serving on the conm ssion.

FRANK HOVAN, Appointee to the Comerci al Fi sheries Entry
Comm ssi on, Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane, noted he has had
some experience on the conm ssion because this is a re-

appoi nt ment . He said he considers it inportant work. The
m ssion and the purpose of the commssion is two-fold: to
consi der conservation and to balance that with the economc
health of the fisheries and the fishernen. To look at the

fisheries and to try to balance those two things is a very
difficult job many tinmes. A lot of people' s |ives depend on the
access to the fishery and [the conmission] takes that into

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2008



consideration on all the limtations that it does, he said. One
thing that is not visible to the public is that the three
conmi ssioners sit as an appeal board for denied applications for
limted entry permts, and this is a chance to have a second and
sonetines third ook at an application that has been denied to
try to determne if there are factors that wuld lead the
commi ssion to issue that permit, while followi ng the regul ations
and the statutes that are set down by the Ilegislature and
enhanced by the court system

1: 11: 09 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO observed that M. Honman's education is in
econom cs, public admnistration, and admnistrative |aw, not
bi ol ogy or science. He surmsed M. Honman's previous service on
t he conmm ssion was under the Miurkowski Adm nistration

MR. HOMAN r esponded true.
1:12: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired whether there would be conflicts
between M. Homan's chairmanship of the board of the Al aska
Commerci al Fishing and Agricultural Bank and his position on the
Commer ci al Fisheries Entry Conmm ssion.

MR. HOVAN replied not at the present tinme because his service on
the bank board was sone tinme ago and he has not been in a
position where the two overlap. He said the bank is primarily a
financial lending institution as opposed to the comm ssion which
| ooks at access to the fisheries. In further response to
Representative Seaton, M. Homan clarified that the public
positions listed on his résumé [dated 11/02] are not current
positions.

1: 13: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how nany years M. Homan has been on
t he conm ssi on.

MR. HOVAN answered close to 10 years because he was on the
comm ssion for five years in the early 1990s as well.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired how long has it been since the

Comrercial Fisheries Entry Comm ssion established a new |imted
entry program

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2008



MR. HOVAN responded it has been three years since there was a
[imtation — the Kodiak tanner crab fishery.

1:14: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested M. Homan to explain the
commi ssion's process for limted entry.

MR. HOVAN replied there are 68 limted fisheries and a fishery
is a certain type of gear and a certain area, so these fisheries
are nostly regional, although sonme are statew de. Usual ly the
fishermen in the fishery will petition the comm ssion and say
that there are too many fishernen. He explained that the Al aska
Departnent of Fish & Ganme regulates fishing pressure by

continually reducing the seasons. If the comm ssion sees there
are nore fishernmen trying to make a living in a fishery and the
time gets shorter and shorter, it is usually because there is
too nuch pressure. There is an extensive analysis that goes
into a limtation. The commi ssion |ooks at the nunber of
fishermen, the years of effort, the type of gear, the boats, and
the region. After this major research effort, the conm ssion
conpares notes with the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane to see
what the departnent feels is appropriate. Limtation of a

fishery is taken as a formal action of the conm ssion, he said.
The legislature and the courts established a fornula which
requires that the guidelines be based upon the four years prior,

al though the comm ssion can go back further. Usually the
fisheries wll show thenselves to be in sonme kind of distress
and it will take several years for it all to cone together. But

the typical pattern is that the seasons beconme shorter and
shorter and the gear beconmes nore restrictive until such a tine
that fishernmen cannot really nake a living anynore because of
t he opened access.

1:17: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related that in a previous discussion M.
Homan had indicated there were a nunber of issues that are in
statute or interpreted by the courts that nake the process
probl ematic. So, even when the conmi ssion establishes a limted
permt entry system the nunber of permt holders nust be
expanded beyond the nunmber that participated in the last few

years, and this has nmade the system |l ess workable. Do you or
the conm ssion have suggestions for nmaking this nore workable
and will you cone forward with changes if you are re-appointed,

asked Representative Seaton

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2008



MR. HOMAN said the comm ssion is always |ooking at statute and
often cones to the legislature wth suggestions. Every
| egi sl ative session there is sonme l|legislation that would nodify
the statutes to nmke things work a little better. However,
because of |egislative prerogative, the conm ssion is not always
successful in its suggestions. The comm ssion takes its
direction fromthe | egislature.

1: 20: 19 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON t hanked M. Homan for his willingness to serve,
especially nore than once.

The committee took an at-ease from1:21 p.m to 1:.24 p.m due to
online technical difficulties.

Big Gane Commercial Services Board

1: 24: 06 PM

CO CHAIR JOHNSON announced that the conmmttee would next
consider the appointment of M. Brenda Rebne to the Big Gane
Commercial Services Board. [ Packets contai ned biographical
i nformati on on the appointee.]

CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked Ms. Rebne to begin by stating why she is
interested in serving on the board.

BRENDA REBNE, Appointee to the Big Ganme Conmercial Services
Boar d, Depar t ment of Commer ce, Communi ty, &  Econom c
Devel opnent, stated she is Vice-President of Corporate Affairs
for Ahtna, Incorporated, the owner of land that is inpacted by
all user groups. She said she sees this as an opportunity for
her and her corporation to gain a better understanding of the
needs of this particular user group. She said she also serves
as chair of the Alaska Federation of Natives' Subsistence
Comm ttee Workgroup and she sees that as an area where she can
share this information as well. There are multiple users in
Al aska and outside of Alaska and every opportunity should be
taken to gain understanding of each others' needs in order to
address the issues. She said she is excited about serving on
this board and |earning about the different user groups outside
of subsistence, or customary and traditional users.

1: 25: 33 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked Ms. Rebne to address the
wildlife violation Iisted on her application.

M5. REBNE responded she mstakenly shot a npose that did not
nmeet the 50-inch [antler] requirenent. She said she was beyond
horrified and imedi ately dressed the noose out and took it to
the trooper station where she handed it over. Wil e she has
spent her entire life out in the field with her famly, that was
the first year she ever actually shot a npose herself. It was
regrettable and she followed the proper procedure of turning the
noose in immediately. She received a fine, and it is not one of
her prouder nonents, she said.

1: 26: 51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH appreciated that M. Rebne stepped

forward and took responsibility for her actions, as everyone can
make m stakes. She asked if Ms. Rebne self-reported her action.

M5. REBNE replied yes. In further response to Representative
Fai rcl ough, Ms. Rebne stated the antlers were 42 inches, so they
were short 8 inches. She said she does not believe she wl

ever live it down.
1: 27: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH i nquired whether Ms. Rebne is involved
or aware of Ahtna, Incorporated' s position against another
person that is before the commttee today [Ahtna, Incorporated' s
3/10/08 letter opposing the re-appointnent of Ted Spraker to the
Board of Gane].

M5. REBNE said the letter canme from the president and as an
enpl oyee of Ahtna, Incorporated, she is aware of it. She is in
an unconfortable position so she is not comrenting on it, she
st at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH remarked that when people have
opi nions she wants to know where they are comng from and why
they are in opposition to a particul ar appointee. | f sonething
is dysfunctional inside a board, she would like to know about it
so a determ nation can be nmade regardi ng both applicants.

1: 29: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he has the sane question, but
remnded the conmttee that the appointnments are for two

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2008



di fferent boards. Since Ahtna, Incorporated's comment was in
regard to subsistence, he expressed his concern that M. Rebne
as an enployee would be comng to the comercial services board
wi th an agenda supporting subsistence and opposing sport hunting
and the purposes of the Big Gane Commercial Services Board for
regul ati ng big game commerci al gui des.

M5. REBNE answered she does not believe she will be biased in
her position on this board. This is an opportunity to educate
this particular group on sone of the issues and from what she
has already seen in the past couple of days, this group is
already aware of it thenselves. She said she thinks
representing a large land owner wll be a benefit to this
[ board] and there are nore opportunities than negatives with her
past experience.

1: 32: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Rebne to coment on Ahtna,
I ncorporated's letter in regard to its opposition to a person
because that person pronotes sport hunting instead of
subsi stence use, and how she will work where the Board of Gane
and the Big Gane Commercial Services Board intersect.

M5. REBNE said her difficulty is that it is a letter witten by
Ahtna, Incorporated's president and she does not have the
authority to comment on the letter. She said that is not a
reflection of her sitting on this board; those are the
president's comrents.

1:33: 38 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON i nqui red whet her Ms. Rebne has seen the letter
M5. REBNE r esponded yes.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked whet her Ms. Rebne agrees with the letter.

M5. REBNE replied sone points she agrees with; there have been
past actions. However, she prefers to nove forward.

1: 33: 58 PM
CO- CHAIR JOHNSON inquired whether Ms. Rebne works directly for

M. Ken Johns [President/CEO of Ahtna, |Incorporated, author of
the letter].

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2008



M5. REBNE answered yes.

CO CHAIR JOHNSON asked what type of influence M. Johns wll
have over Ms. Rebne's day-to-day professional life when it cones
to board deci sions.

M5. REBNE responded M. Johns is her inmediate supervisor, he
does not direct her activities outside of her position.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON i nqui red whether Ms. Rebne was strong enough to
wi thstand that pressure.

M5. REBNE replied she believes so.

1:34: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH apol ogi zed for the awkwardness of the
conversation, and stated the commttee is in a difficult
position too. She asked Ms. Rebne to speak regarding her
opinions on traditional use rights versus sports hunting rights.

M5. REBNE answered she is new to the guide service and the
transporter issue and she has learned a ot in the last one and

a half days she has spent at the neeting. She said she
i medi ately noticed there are user group conflicts within the
transporters and the guides thenselves. At | east one guide
menti oned customary and traditional wuse and historical use
within his own field. So this is one area where she has
identified some simlarities. There are sone user conflicts

within the user group that she found interesting, so she is
thinking that is "an opportunity to try to get our hands around
that because that is an issue that affects all the user groups

in all areas.” Sonme of the conflicts within this user group are
simlar to the subsistence and the sport hunter conflicts. Wen
two user groups are having simlar conflicts, it is an
opportunity to have nore mnds to try resolving an issue that
woul d benefit the nost people. There are differences in
concept; for instance, there are people who think sport hunting
is recreational use. It is a very conplicated issue. There are

customary and traditional wusers, but there are a lot of
simlarities between these groups.

1:36:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH inquired whether M. Rebne supports

customary and traditional use or sports hunting and how would
she bal ance t hose.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2008



M5. REBNE said she does not have the answer as to how she woul d
bal ance them but she does recognize that all user groups have
the right to this resource. There is definitely an issue that
needs to be resolved and she thinks that the nore people from
all the user groups that can work together, the closer they wll
get to finding an answer to that question.

1: 37: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what Ms. Rebne sees as the job of
the Big Gane Conmmercial Services Board.

M5. REBNE responded she has read the past couple of years of
m nutes and the regulations. She said what she has seen in the
| ast day and a half is that all users in this group - the guides
and the transporters, the Departnent of Natural Resources, the
| ocal conmmunity, and the board - have identified that there is a
l[imted resource and that in sone cases there are too many
guides within sone of the guide-use areas. There is also the
i ssue between the transporters, but that is not being addressed
at this particular neeting because only the guide use is being
addr essed. The genesis of the issue is that the resource is
bei ng overharvested, but right now at this neeting this board is
only addressing the guides' use of that resource. The
transporters need to be pulled into this loop as well, and that
is becomng clearer and clearer as the neeting continues. There
is definitely a recognition that the resource has to be
protected for all users, which she said she finds very
enlightening and was glad to hear. There is a simlar concern
within this group as there is with customary and traditional
users - the issue is the sane.

1: 39: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i nquired whether M. Rebne would be able
to help with regulations for Ganme Managenent Units 11, 12, 13,
and 20 that enable guides to access that area even if she
personal ly thought that nore of the resource should go to
traditional and custonary users. O would Ms. Rebne's position
be that the Big Game Commercial Services Board should restrict
t he use by guides and transporters in those areas?

M5. REBNE replied she thinks that would be the Board of Gane's

determ nation. The Big Gane Conmercial Services Board woul d not
have the authority to do that; it deals with the rules and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- March 12, 2008



regul ations for guides and transporters, not where they can
hunt .

1:41: 07 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO asked whether Ms. Rebne is a volunteer or paid
wor ker and did M. Ken Johns hire her.

M5. REBNE answered she is paid a worker and has worked her way
up through the ranks. She was the Tribal Adm nistrator for the
Native Village of Cantwell when she was recruited by Ahtna,
| ncorporated to work as the Village Tourism Coordi nator. From
there she was pronmoted to Corporate Relations Manager and for
the past three and one-half years she has been the Vice-
President of Corporate Affairs. She said that as Vice-President
of Corporate Affairs she is famliar with the subsistence issue
as it is related to the corporation, but [subsistence] is not
t he focus of her position.

1:42: 12 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO inquired how Ms. Rebne would be able to take a
di fferent position than her boss and keep her job.

M5. REBNE said certainly the corporation has positions that she
supports and certainly M. Johns does. He is aware that she has
been appointed to this board and she does not believe that he
woul d put undue influence on her, that is not the type of person
he 1is. The issues that are reflected in the letter are
different for the Board of Game than the for this board.

1: 43: 37 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked how Ms. Rebne would justify her appointnment
to a sport hunter.

M5. REBNE responded there are two different positions regarding

sport hunting and subsi stence. She said she wants to use this
as an opportunity to learn nore about that area of user groups
so she can better understand that. “I really think that if we

don't figure out how to work together and resolve sone of these
issues, we're just going to be butting heads continuously."”
Even though her heart is in rural Al aska and she was raised in a
customary and traditional way, she said she still needs to |earn
how ot her user groups operate so everyone can work together or
the state will be in big trouble.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- March 12, 2008



1:44:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she thinks it is wonderful that
Ms. Rebne serves as chair of the Al aska Federation of Natives'
Subsi stence Comm ttee Wrkgroup and that all boards need to be
bal anced with equal representation from across the state. She
asked whether Ms. Rebne believes the current board is bal anced
in regard to sports and subsi stence hunti ng.

M5. REBNE replied she does not believe there is anyone else
representing any subsistence issues, but she is reluctant to say
this since she has only been in neetings for one and one-half
days. She said she has been encouraged at the degree of
openness. Sone subsi stence questions have cone up and she has
not felt that there is any hostility nor has she heard any anti -
subsi stence comrents. Wiile there mght not be specific
representation from the Native community on this board, she
t hi nks she brings that to this table.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH informed the conmttee that before
maki ng a recomendation she would like to know the conposite of
the Board of Ganme and the Big Game Commercial Services Board as
they currently sit to nmake sure that all of Al aska's voices are
heard on each board.

1:49: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to how many nenbers conpose
the Big Gane Conmmercial Services Board.

MS5. REBNE answered nine: two transporters, two | andowners, two
gui des, two fromthe public, and one fromthe Board of Gane. In
further response to Representative Seaton, M. Rebne confirned
she is one of the two | andowner representatives, and she thinks
she just happens to be Al aska Native.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it clarifies things for him to know
that there are designated seats.

1:50:11 PM
CO- CHAI R JOHNSON announced the conmttee had lost its quorum and
could not take any action on the renmining two appointees. He

said he is therefore adjourning the commttee and rescheduling a
continuation of the hearing.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES clarified that the reason for the conmttee
losing its quorum is because a |arge nunber of norning neetings
were reschedul ed, resulting in conflicts for many nenbers.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Resources Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 1:52:54
PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2008



